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321732381-01-AL 05/18/2018 12/31/2018 

Issued to: DAVID P STACK 
BROOKLYN 77 SANDS STREET Business: ARCHSTONE BUILDERS LLC 

Contractor No: GC-608319 

ALTERATION TYPE 1 - INTERIOR TENANT FIT OUT FOR NEW EDUCATIONAL FACILITY AND CHANGE USE FROM
 
CURRE NTLY APPROVED OFFICE UG-6 USE TO SCHOOL UG-9 USE AS PER SUBMITTED PLANS.
 

Review is requested under Building Code: 1968 SITE FILL: NOT APPLICABLE
 

01 07/31/2018
 



      

   
 

     
   

  

  
  

  

 

 

   

 

  

 

 

Page 1 of 3 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 320592989T004 

This  certifies that the premises  described  herein conforms substantially  to the approved plans and specifications and to the 
requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified. No change of use or occupancy 
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued. This document  or a copy shall be available for inspection at  the 
building at all reasonable times. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

Borough: Brooklyn 

Address: 73 SANDS STREET 

Building Identification Number (BIN): 3000171 

Block Number: 00077 

Building Type: 
Altered 

Lot Number(s): 1 

Certificate Type: Temporary 

Effective Date: 02/07/2018 

05/08/2018 Expiration Date: 

This building is subject to this Building Code:  1968 Code 

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb. 

Construction classification: 

Building Occupancy Group classification: 

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification: 

B 

None 

(2014/2008 Code) 

1-B (1968 Code designation) 

No. of stories: Height in feet: No. of dwelling units: 12 149 0 

Fire Protection Equipment: 
Standpipe system, Fire alarm system, Sprinkler system 

Type and number of open spaces: 
Loading berths (6), Loading berths (2512 square feet) 

This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations: 
None 

Outstanding requirements for obtaining Final Certificate of Occupancy: 

There are 31 outstanding requirements. Please refer to BISWeb for further detail. 

Borough Comments: 

OK TO RENEW TCO#4 FOR 90 DAYS AS PREVIOUSLY ISSUED. NO FURTHER RENEWAL WITHOUT TR1 & TR8 
FORMS AND RESOLVE ECB VIOLATION & OPEN PAA. OK TO ISSUE WITH OPEN PAA. 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 



              
       

 

          
 

 

 

          
 

 

                  
        

 
 

 

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                            

 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 3 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 320592989T004 

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations below are 2008 designations. 

Floor 
From To 

Maximum 
persons 
permitted 

Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft. 

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group 

Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units 

Zoning 
use group Description of use 

001 001 2500 16 LOBBY, LOADING BERTH B 

001 001 250196 6 RETAIL TENANT 1 - EATING & DRINKING 
ESTABLISHMENT 

A-2 

002 002 250120 6 VACANT/NO OCCUPANCY (OFFICES) B 

003 003 250120 6 VACANT/NO OCCUPANCY (OFFICES) B 

004 004 250120 6 VACANT/NO OCCUPANCY (OFFICES) B 

005 005 350120 6 VACANT/NO OCCUPANCY (OFFICES) B 

006 006 250235 6 OFFICES B 

007 007 250235 6 OFFICES B 

008 008 250235 6 OFFICES B 

009 009 200235 6 OFFICES B 

010 010 200120 6 OFFICES B 

011 011 120133 6 OFFICES B 

012 012 120150 6 OFFICES B 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 



              
       

 

          
 

 

 

          
 

 

                  
        

 
 

 

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                            

 

 

  

Page 3 of 3 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 320592989T004 

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations below are 2008 designations. 

Floor 
From To 

Maximum 
persons 
permitted 

Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft. 

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group 

Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units 

Zoning 
use group Description of use 

012 43 OFFICES 012 

BSA VARIANCE FOR LOADING BERTHS 735-55-BZ, 11/01/1955 

END OF SECTION 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

END OF DOCUMENT 320592989/004  2/7/2018 9:47:37 AM 
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https://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000082484
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Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Financial Statements
	

June 30, 2018 and 2017
	



 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Trustees 
Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Brooklyn Laboratory Charter 
Schools (the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, 
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 I Tel: 914.381.8900 I Fax: 914.381.8910 I www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 

http:www.pkfod.com


 

Board of Trustees 
Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 
Page 2 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the School as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its net assets and 
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the School’s 2017 financial statements, and we expressed an 
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 31, 
2017. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2017 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial 
statements from which it was derived. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 31, 2018, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

Harrison, New York 
October 31, 2018 



                          

            

         

                             

                      

                             

         

                  

               

      
                  

            

      
                          

            

Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Statement of Financial Position 

June 30, 2018 

(with comparative amounts at June 30, 2017) 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Grants and contracts receivable 

Other receivables 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

Note receivable - related party 

Total Current Assets 

2018 

4,149,965$ 

1,722,774 

125,332 

518,188 

1,087,920 

7,604,179 

$ 

2017 

3,178,702 

346,534 

25,136 

243,412 

-

3,793,784 

Property and equipment, net 

Security deposits 

Cash, debt service reserve account 

Due from related party 

Restricted cash 

4,750,519 

400,494 

313,213 

319,719 

75,082 

3,057,639 

386,831 

937,848 

-

75,040 

$ 13,463,206 $ 8,251,142 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 

Refundable advances 

Due to related party 

Note payable, current portion 

Total Current Liabilities 

1,034,665$ 

287,393 

347,035 

285,997 

446,478 

2,401,568 

$ 256,701 

211,516 

-

96,102 

421,252 

985,571 

Note payable, long-term 
Deferred rent and lease incentive 

Total Liabilities 

2,516,405 
992,120 

5,910,093 

2,954,925 
709,394 

4,649,890 

Net Assets 

Unrestricted 
Temporarily Restricted 

Total Net Assets 

7,553,113 
-

7,553,113 

2,201,252 
1,400,000 

3,601,252 

$ 13,463,206 $ 8,251,142 

See notes to financial statements
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Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Statement of Activities
	
Year Ended June 30, 2018
	

(with summarized totals for the year ended June 30, 2017)
	

2018 

Temporarily 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 2017 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT 

State and local per pupil operating revenue $ 11,925,869 $ - $ 11,925,869 $ 7,968,202 

State and local per pupil facilities funding 2,991,394 - 2,991,394 1,158,333 

Federal grants 674,964 - 674,964 489,095 

State and city grants 58,624 - 58,624 40,700 

Contributions and grants 2,935,098 - 2,935,098 1,492,018 

Donated goods and services 119,015 - 119,015 330,331 

Interest and other income 123,699 - 123,699 26,643 

Released from restriction 1,400,000 (1,400,000) - -

Total Revenue and Support 20,228,663 (1,400,000) 18,828,663 11,505,322 

EXPENSES 

Program Services 

Regular education 9,030,498 - 9,030,498 5,599,846 

Special education 4,164,379 - 4,164,379 2,331,300 

Total Program Services 13,194,877 - 13,194,877 7,931,146 

Supporting Services 

Management and general 1,681,925 - 1,681,925 1,602,435 

Total Expenses 14,876,802 - 14,876,802 9,533,581 

Change in Net Assets 5,351,861 (1,400,000) 3,951,861 1,971,741 

NET ASSETS 

Beginning of year 2,201,252 1,400,000 3,601,252 1,629,511 

End of year $ 7,553,113 -$ 7,553,113$ 3,601,252$ 

See notes to financial statements
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Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Statement of Functional Expenses
	
Year Ended June 30, 2018
	

(with summarized totals for the year ended June 30, 2017)
	

2018 2017 

Personnel Services Costs 

Administrative staff personnel 

Instructional personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 

No. of 

Positions 

26 

60 

86 

Regular 

Education 

920,933$ 

2,614,596 

3,535,529 

Special 

Education 

424,685$ 

1,205,710 

1,630,395 

Program Services 

Total 

1,345,618$ 

3,820,306 

5,165,924 

Management 

and 

General 

576,694$ 

-

576,694 

Total 

1,922,312$ 

3,820,306 

5,742,618 

$ 

Total 

1,573,599 

2,039,740 

3,613,339 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 

Retirement 

Legal services 

Accounting/audit services 

Other purchased/professional/consulting services 

Building and land rent/lease 

Repairs and maintenance 

Insurance 

Utilities 

Supplies/materials 

Equipment/furnishings 

Staff development 

Marketing/recruitment 

Technology 

Food services 

Student services 

Office expense 

Depreciation and amortization 

Travel and conference 

Interest expense 

Other expenses 

711,609 

22,865 

-

-

1,070,815 

1,707,852 

149,400 

44,734 

103,838 

119,065 

62,518 

182,658 

104,714 

45,456 

252,064 

167,989 

117,139 

491,404 

18,123 

120,077 

2,649 

328,156 

10,544 

-

-

493,803 

787,569 

68,895 

20,629 

47,885 

54,906 

28,830 

84,232 

48,289 

20,962 

116,238 

77,467 

54,018 

226,609 

8,357 

55,373 

1,222 

1,039,765 

33,409 

-

-

1,564,618 

2,495,421 

218,295 

65,363 

151,723 

173,971 

91,348 

266,890 

153,003 

66,418 

368,302 

245,456 

171,157 

718,013 

26,480 

175,450 

3,871 

116,072 

3,730 

281,619 

15,250 

174,665 

278,574 

24,370 

7,297 

16,937 

-

10,198 

29,793 

17,080 

7,414 

-

-

19,108 

80,155 

2,957 

19,586 

426 

1,155,837 

37,139 

281,619 

15,250 

1,739,283 

2,773,995 

242,665 

72,660 

168,660 

173,971 

101,546 

296,683 

170,083 

73,832 

368,302 

245,456 

190,265 

798,168 

29,437 

195,036 

4,297 

594,569 

69,508 

466,801 

25,250 

1,418,601 

1,691,165 

167,586 

51,523 

121,182 

127,050 

110,764 

62,647 

74,021 

38,672 

288,976 

126,526 

116,919 

200,804 

38,624 

109,525 

19,529 

Total Expenses 9,030,498$ 4,164,379$ $ 13,194,877 $ 1,681,925 $ 14,876,802 $ 9,533,581 

See notes to financial statements
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Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 

(with comparative amounts for the year ended June 30, 2017) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Change in net assets 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 

to net cash from operating activities 

Depreciation and amortization 

Amortization of debt issuance costs 

Deferred rent and lease incentive 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities 

Grants and contracts receivable 

Other receivables 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

Security deposits 

Due from related party 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 

Refundable advances 

Due to related party 

Net Cash from Operating Activities 

2018 

3,951,861$ 

798,168 

7,958 

282,726 

(1,376,240) 

(100,196) 

(274,776) 

(13,663) 

(319,719) 

777,964 

75,877 

347,035 

189,895 

4,346,890 

$ 

2017 

1,971,741 

200,804 

5,969 

668,769 

(48,656) 

(3,069) 

(183,335) 

(79,515) 

-

56,614 

106,313 

(19,775) 

41,484 

2,717,344 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchases of property and equipment 

Cash, debt service reserve account 

Restricted cash 

Net Cash from Investing Activities 

(2,491,048) 

624,635 

(42) 

(1,866,455) 

(2,400,852) 

(937,848) 

(25,029) 

(3,363,729) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Issuance of note receivable - related party 

Repayment of note payable 

Proceeds from note payable 

Net Cash from Financing Activities 

(1,087,920) 

(421,252) 

-

(1,509,172) 

-

(69,442) 

3,439,650 

3,370,208 

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 971,263 2,723,823 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Beginning of year 3,178,702 454,879 

End of year 4,149,965$ $ 3,178,702 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Cash paid during the year for interest 189,097$ $ 87,118 

See notes to financial statements
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Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements
	
June 30, 2018 and 2017
	

1. Organization and Tax Status 

Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools (the “School") is a New York State, not-for-profit 
educational corporation that was incorporated on December 17, 2013 to operate a charter 
school pursuant to Article 56 of the Education Law of the State of New York. The School 
was granted a provisional charter on December 17, 2013, valid for a term of five years and 
renewable upon expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New 
York. The School's mission is to provide its students with a solid foundation for academic 
success, through achievement that exceeds citywide averages and meets or exceeds New 
York State standards and national norms in all curriculum areas tested, especially in 
mathematics and language arts. The School provided education to approximately 606 
students in grades sixth through ninth during the 2017-2018 academic year. 

The School and Brooklyn Laboratory Charter High School (“Charter 2”) (a related charter 
school that opened in the Fall 2018) merged into a single not-for-profit legal entity under 
Brooklyn Laboratory Charter School, which serves as the sole surviving education 
corporation under the amended name Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools. The plan of 
merger was approved by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York on 
March 30, 2017, and became effective for financial purposes on July 1, 2017. The merged 
corporation shall operate under the provisional charter granted to Brooklyn Laboratory 
Charter School under the amended name Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools. The School 
is authorized by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York. Brooklyn 
Laboratory Charter High School was dissolved in conjunction with this merger. There was no 
activity under Charter 2 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

The School uses an outside vendor to serve breakfast and lunch to its students and files for 
reimbursement of qualified expenses through the National School Lunch Program and the 
School Breakfast Program. The School provides Metrocards to a majority of the School’s 
students. 

Except for taxes that may be due for unrelated business income, the School is exempt from 
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and from state and 
local income taxes under comparable laws. 

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), which requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Accordingly actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements
	
June 30, 2018 and 2017
	

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Net Assets Presentation 

Resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into net 
asset categories established according to nature and purpose as follows: 

Unrestricted - consist of resources available for the general support of the School’s 
operations. Unrestricted net assets may be used at the discretion of the School’s 
management and Board of Trustees. 

Temporarily Restricted - represent amounts restricted by donors for specific activities of 
the School or to be used at some future date. The School records contributions as 
temporarily restricted if they are received with donor stipulations that limit their use either 
through purpose or time restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a time 
restriction ends or a purpose restriction is fulfilled, temporarily restricted net assets are 
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of activities as net 
assets released from restrictions. However, when restrictions on donor-restricted 
contributions are met in the same accounting period in which they are received, such 
amounts are reported as unrestricted net assets. 

Permanently Restricted - consist of net assets that are subject to donor imposed 
restrictions that require the School to maintain them permanently, including funds that are 
subject to restrictions of gift instruments requiring that the principal be invested in 
perpetuity and the income be used for specific or general purposes. Income and gains 
earned on endowment fund investments are available to be used in the unrestricted or 
temporarily restricted net asset classes based upon stipulations by the donors. 

The School had no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash balances held in bank accounts and highly liquid 
debt instruments with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase. 

Restricted Cash 

Under the provisions of its charter, the School established an escrow account to pay for legal 
and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution, should it occur. 

8
	



Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements
	
June 30, 2018 and 2017
	

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Property and Equipment 

The School follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and equipment with 
costs in excess of $1,000 and a useful life in excess of one year. Leasehold improvements are 
amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease, inclusive of all renewal periods, which are 
reasonably assured, or the estimated useful life of the asset. Purchased property and 
equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Minor costs of maintenance and 
repairs are expensed as incurred. All property and equipment purchased with government 
funding is capitalized, unless the government agency retains legal title to such assets, in which 
case it is expensed as incurred. No amortization is recorded on construction-in-progress until 
property is placed into service. 

Depreciation and amortization is provided on the straight line method over the estimated useful 
lives as follows: 

Computers and other equipment 3 years
	
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
	

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment if the use of the asset significantly 
changes or another indicator of possible impairment is identified. If the carrying amount for the 
asset is not recoverable, the asset is written down to its fair value. There were no asset 
impairments for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

Refundable Advances 

The School records certain government grants and contracts as refundable advances until 
related services are performed, at which time it is recognized as revenue. 

Debt Issuance Costs 

Debt issuance costs are reported on the statements of financial position as a direct 
deduction from the face amount of the debt. The debt issuance costs are being amortized 
over the term of the debt on a method that approximates the effective interest method. The 
School reflects amortization of debt issuance costs within interest expense. Unamortized 
debt issuance costs at June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $46,423 and $54,381. 

Deferred Rent 

The School records its rent in accordance with U.S. GAAP whereby all rental payments, 
including fixed rent increases, are recognized on a straight-line basis as an offset to rent 
expense. The difference between the straight-line rent expense and the required lease 
payments, as well as any unamortized lease incentives, is reflected in deferred rent in the 
accompanying statements of financial position. 

9
	



Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements
	
June 30, 2018 and 2017
	

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Revenue and Support 

Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and 
based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in 
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are recorded 
when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agency. 

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the School that is, in 
substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions of cash are reported as temporarily 
restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations. Restricted contributions and 
grants that are made to support the School’s current year activities are recorded as unrestricted 
revenue. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value at 
the date of donation. 

Donated Goods and Services 

The School recognizes contributions of services if they create or enhance nonfinancial 
assets, require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, would 
typically need to be purchased if not provided by the School, and are measurable. 

One entity has provided legal services to the School at no charge. The value of these services 
meets the criteria for recognition in the financial statements and were recorded at a fair value of 
$114,565 and $330,331 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. The value of these 
services is allocated to management and general services in the accompanying statements of 
activities and functional expenses. 

Donated goods are recorded at their fair value when received. InnovateEDU, Inc., a related 
party, donated computer equipment at a fair value of $4,450 for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
The value of these goods are capitalized as property and equipment on the accompanying 
statement of financial position and depreciated over their useful lives. 

Marketing and Recruitment 

Marketing and recruitment costs are expensed as incurred for staff and student recruitment. 
Marketing and recruitment expense for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was 
$170,083 and $74,021. 

Functional Expense Allocation 

The majority of expenses can generally be directly identified with the program or supporting 
service to which they relate and are charged accordingly. Other expenses by function have 
been allocated among program and supporting services classifications on the basis of periodic 
time and expense studies and other basis as determined by management of the School to be 
appropriate. 
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Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements
	
June 30, 2018 and 2017
	

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes 

The School recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely 
than not to be sustained. Management has determined that the School had no uncertain tax 
positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. All returns filed by the 
School are subject to examinations by the applicable taxing jurisdictions. 

Prior Year Summarized Comparative Financial Information 

The financial statements include prior year summarized comparative information in total but not 
by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a 
presentation in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, such information should be read in 
conjunction with the School’s financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, 
from which the summarized information was derived. 

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management 

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the 
financial statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, 
which date is October 31, 2018. 

See Notes 7, 8, and 13 for loan agreements and commitments. 

3. Grants and Contracts Receivable 

Grants and contracts receivable consist of federal, state, and city entitlements and grants. The 
School expects to collect these receivables within one year. 

4. Conditional Promise to Give 

On June 23, 2017, the School received a $9,400,000 grant from one organization for the 
design and development of Brooklyn Laboratory High School. The grant contains various 
grantor conditions related to specific milestones. Since this grant represents a conditional 
promise to give, it is not recognized as grants and contributions revenue until grantor 
conditions are met. For the years ended June 30, 2018, and 2017, revenue recognized 
under this grant totaled $2,000,000 and $1,400,000. At June 30, 2018, the remaining 
balance of this conditional promise to give was $6,000,000. 
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Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements
	
June 30, 2018 and 2017
	

5. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30: 

2018 2017
	
Computers and other equipment $ 774,370 $ 182,791
	
Software 11,875 -

Furniture and fixtures 445,340 321,601
	
Leasehold improvements 4,283,052 996,947
	
Construction-in-progress 362,769 1,885,019
	

5,877,406 3,386,358
	
Accumulated depreciation

         and amortization (1,126,887) (328,719)
	

$ 4,750,519 $ 3,057,639
	

Construction-in-progress at June 30, 2018 consists of costs of construction, renovation, fees, 
and other soft costs related to facilities located at 25 Chapel Street, Brooklyn, New York and 77 
Sands Street, Brooklyn, New York. Construction-in-progress at June 30, 2017 consisted of 
costs of construction, renovation, fees, and other soft costs related to the facility located at 25 
Chapel Street, Brooklyn, New York. During the year ended June 30, 2018, the facility at 25 
Chapel Street was placed into service, and the leasehold improvements associated with the 
facility were amortized over their useful lives. 

6. Retirement Plan 

The School has a SEP-IRA retirement plan that covers all eligible employees. Under the plan, 
the School provides matching contributions of 1% to 5% of the employees’ base salary based 
on years of service. Total employer match for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 
amounted to $37,139 and $69,508. 

7. Related Party Transactions (not disclosed elsewhere) 

InnovateEDU, Inc. 

The School is related to InnovateEDU, Inc. (“Innovate”), a New York State not-for-profit 
corporation, by common management. On August 9, 2014, the School entered into a service 
agreement with Innovate to provide the School with educational core services. This agreement 
has been renewed through June 30, 2019. This agreement was amended to add services 
provided by senior fellows and consultants. 

On September 5, 2017, the School entered into an agreement with Innovate for the School to 
compensate Innovate for an afterschool program for the 2017-2018 school year. On 
September 31, 2016, the School entered into an agreement with Innovate for the School to 
compensate Innovate for an afterschool program for the 2016-2017 school year. In accordance 
with these agreements, the School provided donated facilities and services to Innovate at a fair 
value of $450,692 and $475,455 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, included in 
various expenses in the accompanying statement of functional expenses. 

12
	



                 

         

       

       

       

Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements
	
June 30, 2018 and 2017
	

7. Related Party Transactions (not disclosed elsewhere) (continued) 

InnovateEDU, Inc. (continued) 

Innovate charged the School the following amounts for services relating to the above 
agreements for the years ended June 30: 

2018 2017
	
Educational core services $ 959,313 $ 830,930
	
Afterschool program 137,500 99,000
	

$ 1,096,813 $ 929,930 

For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, grants revenue from Innovate amounted to 
$929,398 and $86,518. 

In addition, for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, Innovate paid on behalf of the 
School $37,543 and $8,987 for operating expenses. Net balance due to Innovate at June 30, 
2018 and 2017 amounted to $285,997 and $96,102. 

Friends of Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools, Inc. 

The School is related to Friends of Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools, Inc. (“Friends Of”), a 
New York State, not-for-profit corporation, by common management. 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the School loaned funds to Friends Of in the amount of 
$1,087,920 for renovations to the facility located at 77 Sands Street, Brooklyn, New York. On 
October 1, 2018, the School’s Board of Trustees adopted a resolution to memorialize the 
loaned funds in the form of a promissory note. Under the terms of the promissory note, Friends 
Of was required to repay the full amount to the School by October 31, 2018 with no interest 
due. Friends Of paid the full amount to the School on October 25, 2018. 

On July 30, 2018, the School signed a promissory note receivable for $2,500,000 with Friends 
Of (see Note 8). The note bears interest at 3% per annum and matures on July 1, 2023. If 
payment is not made within fifteen (15) days after the due date, Friends Of shall pay a late 
charge in the amount of the lesser of ten percent (10%) per annum or the maximum rate 
permitted under applicable law. This debt is subordinate to the loans payable in Note 13, where 
the School is a guarantor for Friends Of. 

Future minimum payments to be received under the note are as follows for the years ending 
June 30: 

2020 $ 870,000
	
2021 80,000
	
2022 550,000
	
2023 400,000
	
Thereafter 600,000
	

$ 2,500,000
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Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements
	
June 30, 2018 and 2017
	

8. Note Payable 

Note payable consists of the following at June 30: 

2018 2017
	
Loan payable to Capital Impact Partners $ 3,009,306 $ 3,430,558
	
Debt issuance costs, unamortized (46,423) (54,381)
	

$ 2,962,883 $ 3,376,177 

On September 29, 2016, the School entered into a loan agreement with Capital Impact 
Partners (the “Lender”) in the amount of $3,500,000. The note bears interest of 5.75% per 
annum and matures on April 1, 2024. The proceeds were used towards the renovation of 
additional space located at 25 Chapel Street, Brooklyn, New York (see Note 11). The loan is 
payable in eighty-four (84) equal monthly installments of principal and interest of $50,845 
commencing May 1, 2017, and continuing on the first (1st) day of each and every calendar 
month thereafter until the maturity date of April 1, 2024. 

Per the loan agreement, a debt service reserve account established in the name of the School, 
and pledged to and controlled by the Lender, shall be funded with the final disbursement of 
loan proceeds, equal to six (6) months of principal and interest payments that would be 
required to be paid on the then outstanding principal amount of the note. Under the terms of the 
loan agreement, provided that no event of default has occurred and remains outstanding, upon 
the expiration of any notice or cure period, the Lender shall disburse to the School all funds 
remaining in the debt service reserve account promptly after both (a) the School has obtained a 
renewal of its charter, and (b) the School has satisfied the financial covenants for three (3) 
consecutive years. The balance of this debt service reserve account at June 30, 2018 and 
2017 amounted to $313,213 and $937,848. 

Under the terms of the loan agreement, the School must maintain three financial performance 
covenants. At June 30, 2018, the School was in compliance with all covenants. 

On July 30, 2018, the School entered into a loan agreement with CSGF Facility Fund III LLC in 
the amount of $2,500,000. The note bears interest of 3% per annum and matures on July 15, 
2023. The proceeds are to be used towards the renovation of a facility located at 77 Sands 
Street, Brooklyn, New York. Under the terms of the agreement, the School must maintain one 
financial performance covenant. The School loaned the full amount to Friends Of (see Note 7). 
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Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements
	
June 30, 2018 and 2017
	

8. Note Payable (continued) 

Minimum future principal payments under these notes are to be paid as follows for the years 
ending June 30: 

2019 

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

Thereafter 

$ 446,478 

1,342,849 

581,528 

1,081,561 

963,392 

1,093,498 

$ 5,509,306 

9. Concentration of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit and market 
risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions, which 
from time to time may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) limit. The 
School does not believe that a significant risk of loss due to the failure of a financial institution 
presently exists. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, approximately $4,038,000 and $3,700,000 of 
cash was maintained with institutions in excess of FDIC limits. 

10. Concentration of Revenue and Support 

The School receives a substantial portion of its revenue and support from the New York City 
Department of Education. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the School received 
approximately 79% of its total revenue and support from the New York City Department of 
Education. If the charter school laws were modified, reducing or eliminating these revenues, 
the School’s finances could be materially adversely affected. 

11. Contingency 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits might 
result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the opinion 
that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying 
financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying 
financial statements for such potential claims. 

12. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2017 consisted of a grant in the amount of 
$1,400,000 to be used for the design and development of the high school. All temporarily 
restricted net assets were released from their restrictions during the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements
	
June 30, 2018 and 2017
	

13. Commitments 

Facility Leases 

On July 1, 2014, the School entered into an operating lease agreement with The Trustees of 
St. James Roman Catholic Church, Brooklyn, New York to lease a building located at 240 Jay 
Street in Brooklyn, New York. The lease term commenced on July 1, 2014 and expires on June 
30, 2024, with an option to extend the lease for an additional ten years. Under the terms of the 
lease, the School paid a security deposit in the amount of $54,000. The School is responsible 
for utilities, custodial services, and maintenance. 

On June 17, 2016, the School entered into an operating lease agreement with 40 Flatbush 
Realty Associates (the “Landlord”) to lease the eighth floor of a building located at 25 Chapel 
Street a/k/a 40 Flatbush Avenue Extension, Brooklyn, New York. The lease term commenced 
on July 1, 2016 and expires on June 30, 2026, with an option to extend the lease for an 
additional five years. On June 2, 2017, the lease was amended to add a tenth floor to the 
current lease. The new lease term commenced on June 1, 2017 and expires on June 30, 2027, 
with an option to extend the lease for an additional five years. Under the terms of the lease, the 
School paid an additional security deposit in the amount of $75,000 to be added to the security 
deposit that was paid with the original lease in the amount of $250,000. The School is 
responsible for utilities, custodial services, and maintenance. This space is used as additional 
classroom space beginning in the 2017-18 school year. On August 9, 2017, the lease was 
amended for a third time to clarify, modify and amend certain aspects of the landlord’s 
obligations with respect to the purchase and installation of a heating, venting and air condition 
system (“HVAC System”). 

Under the terms of the second lease, the Landlord has provided the School with a tenant 
improvement allowance to perform work on the leased property relating to cement, concrete, 
flooring and HVAC system. This amount is recorded as a lease incentive and amortized over 
the life of the lease. Adjustment to rental expense for this lease incentive amounted to $27,845 
and $7,273 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. The unamortized amount of this 
lease incentive is $250,612 and $72,727 at June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, liens were placed by contractors on the property located 
at 25 Chapel Street. The School has filed bonds for these liens in the amount of $359,253. This 
amount is included in prepaid expenses and other current assets on the accompanying 
statements of financial position. 
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Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements
	
June 30, 2018 and 2017
	

13. Commitments (continued) 

The School is a guarantor for a lease agreement entered into between Friends Of and RFR/77 
Sands Owner, LLC for a facility located at 77 Sands Street, Brooklyn, New York. Under the 
terms of a rental deposit agreement entered into between the School and Friends Of, the 
School paid a security deposit in the amount of $319,719 on behalf of Friends Of during the 
year ended June 30, 2018. Per the agreement, Friends Of shall repay the School in full on or 
before January 31, 2021. On January 8, 2018, the School entered into a license agreement 
with Friends Of to occupy a portion of the ground floor, entire second, third, fourth, and fifth 
floors, and a portion of the twelfth floor of this facility. The agreement commenced on January 
8, 2018 and expires on June 30, 2019. On July 25, 2018, the School entered into a sublease 
agreement with Friends Of for the same property. The sublease agreement supersedes the 
license agreement. The sublease agreement commenced on July 1, 2018 and expires on June 
29, 2034 with an option to extend the sublease for a period of five or ten years. The School is 
not required to pay a security deposit to Friends Of under the sublease. Friends Of is 
responsible for all additional rent, escalations, operating expenses, and taxes under the original 
lease, as well as utilities, custodial services, and maintenance. 

Future minimum lease payments under all leases are as follows for the years ending June 30: 

2019 $ 3,990,764 

2020 5,278,658 

2021 6,710,193 

2022 7,805,654 

2023 7,834,771 

Thereafter 73,572,241 

$ 105,192,281 

Rent expense under these leases for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was 
$2,773,995 and $1,691,165. 

Loans Payable 

The School is a guarantor for a $4,600,000 loan agreement entered into on July 30, 2018 
between Friends Of and Capital Impact Partners (“CIP”) for the purpose of financing the cost of 
renovations and improvements to the facility located at 77 Sands Street, Brooklyn, New York. 
The loan matures on August 1, 2028. The loan is a commitment that cannot be assigned 
without prior written approval from CIP. This loan is pari passu with the Nonprofit Finance Fund 
loan below. The School and Friends Of are each subject to financial performance covenants 
under the loan. 
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Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements
	
June 30, 2018 and 2017
	

13. Commitments (continued) 

The School is a guarantor for a $4,800,000 loan agreement entered into on July 30, 2018 
between Friends Of and the Nonprofit Finance Fund (“NFF”) for the purpose of financing the 
cost of renovations and improvements to the facility located at 77 Sands Street, Brooklyn, New 
York. The loan matures on August 1, 2028. The loan is a commitment that cannot be assigned 
without prior written approval from NFF. This loan is pari passu with the CIP loan above. The 
School and Friends Of are each subject to financial performance covenants under the loan. 

The School Loan (see Note 7) is subordinate to both the CIP loan and the NFF loan. 

* * * * * 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Trustees 
Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools (the “School”), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2018. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered The School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the School’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 I Tel: 914.381.8900 I Fax: 914.381.8910 I www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 

http:www.pkfod.com


Board of Trustees 
Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 
Page 2 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the School’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Harrison, New York 
October 31, 2018 



       

     

     

   
    

    

      

    
   
   

      
    
   
   

 
 

           

         
              

 
        

                
             

              
             

           

 

  

   

  

Annual Financial Statement Audit Report 

School Name: Charter School Name 

Date (Report is due Nov. 1): November 1, 2018 

Primary District of Location 
(If NYC select NYC DOE): 

New York City Department of Education 

If located in NYC DOE select CSD: NYCSD #13 

School Fiscal Contact Name: Eric Tucker 
School Fiscal Contact Email: 
School Fiscal Contact Phone: 

School Audit Firm Name: PFK O'Connor Davies, LLP 
School Audit Contact Name: Daniel Smolan 
School Audit Contact Email: 
School Audit Contact Phone: 

Audit Period: 2017-18 
Prior Year: 2016-17 

The following items are required to be included: 

1.) The independent auditor’s report on financial statements and notes.
�
2.) Excel template file containing the Financial Position, Statement of Activities, Cash Flow and Functional
�
Expenses worksheets.
�
3.) Reports on internal controls over financial reporting and on compliance.
�

The additional items listed below should be included if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the items are
�
not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school did not expend
�
federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the management letter response will be
�
submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the report); etc.
�

Item If not included, state the reason(s) below (if not applicable fill in N/A): 

Management Letter Attached 

Management Letter Response N/A 

Federal Single Audit (A-133) N/A 

Corrective Action Plan N/A 





   
     
     

 
    

   
 

 
   

  
   

 
    
 

 
  

 

 

 
    

     
    

   
 

 
  

 

 
       

 
   

  
 

 

Charter School Name 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 
Contributions and other receivables 
Other current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net 
Restricted Cash 
Security Deposits 
Other Non-Current Assets 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT 
ASSETS 
TOTAL ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

2018 

4,149,965 
1,722,774 

125,332 
518,188 

1,087,920 
-

7,604,179 

4,750,519 
75,082 

400,494 
632,932 

5,859,027 

13,463,206 

$ 

$ 

2017 

3,178,702 
346,534 

25,136 
243,412 

-
-

3,793,784 

3,057,639 
75,040 

386,831 
937,848 

4,457,358 

8,251,142 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits 
Current Portion of Loan Payable 
Due to Related Parties 
Refundable Advances 
Deferred Revenue 
Other Current Liabilities 

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year 
Deferred Rent 
Due to Related Party 
Other Long-Term Liabilities 

TOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

$ 

$ 

1,034,665 
287,393 

-
285,997 
347,035 

-
446,478 

2,401,568 

2,516,405 
992,120 

-
-

3,508,525 

5,910,093 

$ 

$ 

256,701 
211,516 

-
96,102 

-
-

421,252 

985,571 

2,954,925 
709,394 

-
-

3,664,319 

4,649,890 



 

 
 

   

       

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

$ 7,553,113 
-
-

7,553,113 

$ 2,201,252 
1,400,000 

-
3,601,252 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 13,463,206 8,251,142 



   
   

     

 
        
       
      

 
   
  
   
   

 
 
 

 
  

  

 

       

     
   

  
 

 
   

       

               
 

     

         
   

Charter School Name 
Statement of Activities 

as of June 30 

2018 2017 

Unrestricted Temporarily 
Restricted 

Total Total 

OPERATING REVENUE 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED 
State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue 
Federal Grants 
State and City Grants 
Other Operating Income 
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 

$ 9,032,671 
2,893,198 
2,991,394 

674,964 
58,624 

-
15,650,851 

$ -
-
-
-
-

-
-

$ 9,032,671 
2,893,198 
2,991,394 

674,964 
58,624 

-
-

15,650,851 

$ 6,175,635 
1,792,567 
1,158,333 

489,095 
40,700 

-
9,656,330 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular Education 
Special Education 
Other Programs 

Total Program Services 
Management and general 
Fundraising 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

$ 9,030,498 
4,164,379 

-
13,194,877 

1,681,925 
-

14,876,802 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 9,030,498 
4,164,379 

-
13,194,877 

1,681,925 
-

14,876,802 

$ 5,599,846 
2,331,300 

-
7,931,146 
1,602,435 

-
9,533,581 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS 774,049 - 774,049 122,749 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Interest and Other Income 
Contributions and Grants 
Fundraising Support 
Investments 
Donated Services 
Other Support and Revenue 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

$ 123,699 
2,935,098 

-
-

119,015 
1,400,000 

4,577,812 

$ -
-
-
-
-

(1,400,000) 
(1,400,000) 

$ 123,699 
2,935,098 

-
-

119,015 
-

3,177,812 

$ 26,643 
1,492,018 

-
-

330,331 
-

1,848,992 

Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal 
of Assets 
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

$ -

5,351,861 

$ -

(1,400,000) 

$ -

3,951,861 

$ -

1,971,741 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

$ 2,201,252 
-

$ 1,400,000 
-

$ 3,601,252 
-

$ 1,629,511 
-



         NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 7,553,113 $ - $ 7,553,113 $ 3,601,252 



   
     

     

       
    

    
 

   

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

         

       
  

         

       
    

         

             
    

             

Charter School Name 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30 

2018 2017 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 3,951,861 $ 1,971,741 
Revenues from School Districts - -
Accounts Receivable (419,915) (3,069) 
Due from School Districts - -
Depreciation 806,126 206,773 
Grants Receivable (1,376,240) (48,656) 
Due from NYS - -
Grant revenues - -
Prepaid Expenses (288,439) (262,850) 
Accounts Payable 777,964 56,614 
Accrued Expenses 75,877 106,313 
Accrued Liabilities 189,895 41,484 
Contributions and fund-raising activities - -
Miscellaneous sources - -
Deferred Revenue - -
Interest payments - -
Refundable Advances 347,035 (19,775) 
Deferred Rent 282,726 668,769 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 4,346,890 $ 2,717,344 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ $ 
Purchase of equipment (2,491,048) (2,400,852) 
Other 624,593 (962,877) 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ (1,866,455) $ (3,363,729) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ $ 
Principal payments on long-term debt (421,252) (69,442) 
Other (1,087,920) 3,439,650 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ (1,509,172) $ 3,370,208 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 971,263 $ 2,723,823 
Cash at beginning of year 3,178,702 454,879 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 4,149,965 $ 3,178,702 



   
     

     

   
 

 
         

  
 

 
   

    

  
 

   
    

 
     
  

  
  

 
   

  
 

 

 

Charter School Name
 
Statement of Functional Expenses
 

as of June 30
 

2018 

No. of 
Positions 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
Special 

Education 
Other 

Education 
Total 

Supporting Services 

Fundraising Management 
and General 

Total 

Personnel Services Costs 
Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 

26.00 
60.00 

-

$ 
920,933 

2,614,596 
-

$ 
424,685 

1,205,710 
-

$ 
-
-
-

$ 
1,345,618 
3,820,306 

-

$ 
-
-
-

$ 
576,694 

-
-

$ 
576,694 

-
-

Total Salaries and Staff 
Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes 
Retirement 
Management Company Fees 
Legal Service 
Accounting / Audit Services 
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Supplies / Materials 
Equipment / Furnishings 
Staff Development 
Marketing / Recruitment 
Technology 
Food Service 
Student Services 
Office Expense 
Depreciation 
OTHER 
Total Expenses 

86.00 3,535,529 
711,609 

22,865 
-
-
-

1,070,815 

1,707,852 
149,400 

44,734 
103,838 
119,065 

62,518 
182,658 
104,714 

45,456 
252,064 
167,989 
117,139 
491,404 
140,849 

$ 9,030,498 

1,630,395 
328,156 

10,544 
-
-
-

493,803 

787,569 
68,895 
20,629 
47,885 
54,906 
28,830 
84,232 
48,289 
20,962 

116,238 
77,467 
54,018 

226,609 
64,952 

$ 4,164,379 $ 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
- $ 

5,165,924 
1,039,765 

33,409 
-
-
-

1,564,618 

2,495,421 
218,295 

65,363 
151,723 
173,971 

91,348 
266,890 
153,003 

66,418 
368,302 
245,456 
171,157 
718,013 
205,801 

13,194,877 $ 

- 576,694 
- 116,072 
- 3,730 
- -
- 281,619 
- 15,250 
- 174,665 

- 278,574 
- 24,370 
- 7,297 
- 16,937 
- -
- 10,198 
- 29,793 
- 17,080 
- 7,414 
- -
- -
- 19,108 
- 80,155 
- 22,969 

- $ 1,681,925 $ 

576,694 
116,072 

3,730 
-

281,619 
15,250 

174,665 

278,574 
24,370 

7,297 
16,937 

-
10,198 
29,793 
17,080 

7,414 
-
-

19,108 
80,155 
22,969 

1,681,925 



Charter School Name
Statement of Functional Expenses

as of June 30

2018

  

   
     

     

2017

 Total 

$ 
1,922,312 
3,820,306 

-
5,742,618 
1,155,837 

37,139 
-

281,619 
15,250 

1,739,283 

$ 
1,573,599 
2,039,740 

-
3,613,339 

594,569 
69,508 

-
466,801 

25,250 
1,418,601 

$ 

2,773,995 
242,665 

72,660 
168,660 
173,971 
101,546 
296,683 
170,083 

73,832 
368,302 
245,456 
190,265 
798,168 
228,770 

14,876,802 $ 

1,691,165 
167,586 

51,523 
121,182 
127,050 
110,764 

62,647 
74,021 
38,672 

288,976 
126,526 
116,919 
200,804 
167,678 

9,533,581 



EFGHIJKLJMNNOGOPFQRJSOFQFLOQRJTPLU
 
CDEFGEHIJ89:8;:<8;9J=J>F?GJ@AHFGEHIJ;;:8;:<8;9 

GLEJFHHJGJDEFKJJGEI?JKJ?GEHJHEKDWJ?LD@KHJHEJ@AKDFHEHJJTJFAAKJSFHKENJQKEF?EJEbAKFJEJGLEJDEF?DEB?FJJTJGLE 

JGEI?JFDEJEDGJJESK@HEHNJcbFIAKE?JIJRLGJJESK@HEIJFJWDJGGEEJIFEFREIEEGJKEGGEDJWF?JEDGJJ??@EHdJGLEJ?SLDDK 
HJHJEDGJEbAEEHJTEHEDFKJT@EH?JJEJEbSE??JDTJGLEJPJERKEJe@HJGJGLDE?LDKHJDTJfgh8i888dJGLEJSDDDESGJjEJFSGJDE 

AKFEJWJKKJHEJ?@HIJGGEHJHMJGLEJTDKKDWJERJHFGEJB?LD@KHJHEJEDJKFGEDJGLFEJk8JHFM?JTDDIJGLEJ?@HIJ??JDEJDTJGLE 

DEADDGFdJEGSN 

c\LGOPFJd\QNOFZ 

e`J]QFQZ\^\FGJ_\GG\H 

LGGA?I::EM?EHlS?DlDEADDG?NTK@JHDEjJEWNSDI:DE?A:;gmng;mg:9IIJ@EEKjk: 

EVWRQFQGOPFJXPHJFPGJYWRPQNOFZ BCDJDE?ADE?EF 
G[\J]QFQZ\^\FGJ_\GG\H̀  

f`JSPH^Jaab 

BCDJDE?ADE?EF 

EVWRQFQGOPFJXPHJFPGJYWRPQNOFZ GDJHEJ?@HIJGGEHJKFGEDJJEJGLEJMEFDN 
G[\JSPH^Jaab` 

g`JS\N\HQRJcOFZR\JMYNOG 

CDGEIJeJSDAMJDTJGLEJUEHEDFKJPJERKEJe@HJGJI@?GJHEJTJKEHJWJGLJGLEJUEHEDFKJe@HJGJCKEFDJERLD@?ENJJQKEF?EJDETED 
GDJLIMJNEJTDDIJO@JHEKJEE?JTDDJGLEJTEHEDFKJTJKJERJDEO@JDEIEEG?N 

BCDJDE?ADE?EF 

EVWRQFQGOPFJXPHJFPGJYWRPQNOFZ CDGJDEO@JDEHN 
G[\JS\N\HQRJcOFZR\JMYNOG` 

h`JicjJMZH\\NJkWPFJjHPL\NYH\Jl\WPHG 

BCDJDE?ADE?EF 

EVWRQFQGOPFJXPHJFPGJYWRPQNOFZ CPQJRDFEGJEDGJJEJAKFSEJTDDJGLJ?JUV 

G[\JWHPL\NYH\JH\WPHG` 

12324
 

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/17967197/8mMIunnVv3/


K`JEnON\FL\JPXJl\oYOH\NJEULHPmJMLLPYFG 

LGGA?I::EM?EHlS?DlDEADDG?NTK@JHDEjJEWNSDI:DE?A:;gmng;mg:ACnQ8CFKSE: 

EVWRQFQGOPFJXPHJFPGJYWRPQNOFZ BCDJDE?ADE?EF 
G[\JEULHPmJ\nON\FL\` 

p`JiPHH\LGOn\JMLGOPFJjRQF 

eJiPHH\LGOn\JMLGOPFJjRQFJTDDJe@HJGJUJEHJER?JFEHJIFEFREIEEGJ>EGGEDJPESDIIEEHFGJDE?iJWLJSLJI@?G 
JESK@HEI 

FNJGLEJAED?DEJDE?ADE?JHKE 

HNJGLEJHFGEJFSGJDEJWF?JGFREEiJDDJWJKKJHEJGFREE 

SNJSE?SDJAGJDEJDTJGLEJFSGJDEJGFREE 

HNJcjJHEESEJDTJJIAKEIEEGFGJDEJBJTJFjFJKFHKEF 
BCDJDE?ADE?EF 

EVWRQFQGOPFJXPHJFPGJYWRPQNOFZ GLEJPSLDDKJHJHJEDGJLFjEJe@HJGJUJEHJER?JDDJIFEFREIEEGJ>EGGED 
G[\JiPHH\LGOn\JMLGOPFJjRQF` PESDIIEEHFGJDE?N 

42324
 

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/17967197/pN6H0Nalce/


 
 

 

 

 

 

 

      
  

 
   

  

Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Communication of
 
Internal Control Matters
 

June 30, 2018 



 
 
 
 

  

 
   

 
 
 

   
          

        
     

           
  

  
 

   
 

     
          

     
 

 
   

    
     

 
 

  
 

 
     

   
    

 
 

   
   

 

 
 

 
 

 
           

        
       

 
 
 

Board of Trustees 
Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools 
(the "School") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such 
deficiencies have been identified. 

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses as 
defined above. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Trustees, 
The State Education Department of the State University of New York, and others within the 
Organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

We would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the courtesy and assistance extended to us by 
the personnel of the School during the course of our audit. 

Harrison, New York 
October 31, 2018 
PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 I  Tel: 914.381.8900  I  Fax: 914.381.8910 I www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or 
liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 

http:www.pkfod.com
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New York State Education Department 
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the
­

Board of Regents
­

2018-19 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
2 Enter information into the GRAY cells 

3 
Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

4 

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate 
additional districts if necessary. 

5 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 
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Brooklyn Lab Charter School - Charter 1
­
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019
­

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019
­
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

9,186,480 6,966,886 
6,924,030 5,077,795 
2,262,449 1,889,091 

558 207 
558 207 

OTHER 

4,126,676 
5,830,521 

(1,703,845) 

FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

- 2,970,650 
6,615 3,620,464 

(6,615) (649,814) 

TOTAL 

23,250,691 
21,745,179 

1,505,512 
765 
765 

REVENUE 
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 
Brooklyn Lab Middle School 1 $15,308.00 
Brooklyn Lab Middle School 2 $15,308.00 
Brooklyn Lab High School $15,308.00 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 

PROGRAM SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

3,184,064 1,065,437 
1,469,568 734,784 
2,179,859 734,784 

- -
- -

6,833,491 2,535,005 

OTHER 

-
-
-
-
-

SUPPORT SERVICES 

FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 

- 1,062,375 
- 551,088 
- 728,661 
- -
- -

2,342,124 

TOTAL 

5,311,876 
2,755,440 
3,643,304 

-
-

11,710,620 

Special Education Revenue 
Grants 

Stimulus 
Other 

Other State Revenue 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 
IDEA Special Needs 
Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 
Other 

Other Federal Revenue 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 
Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 
Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE 

- 3,335,282 

- -
- -

- -
6,833,491 5,870,287 

- 223,716 
279,000 103,500 

22,320 8,280 
- -

- -
- -
- -

301,320 335,496 

1,866,242 692,315 
134,800 50,006 

- -
- -
- -

50,627 18,781 
- -

2,051,668 761,103 

9,186,480 6,966,886 

-

-
-

3,858,201 
3,858,201 

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

200,000 
-

68,475 
-
-
-
-

268,475 

4,126,676 

- -

- -
- -
- -

2,342,124 

- -
- -
- -
- 437,083 

- -
- -
- -

437,083 

- 191,443 
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

191,443 

2,970,650 

3,335,282 

-
-

3,858,201 
18,904,103 

223,716 
382,500 

30,600 
437,083 

-
-
-

1,073,899 

2,950,000 
184,806 

68,475 
-
-

69,408 
-

3,272,689 

23,250,691 

EXPENSES 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 1 - - - - 191,443 191,443 
Instructional Management 8 442,826 164,274 - - 151,775 758,875 

17 1,074,942 398,769 - - - 1,473,711 Deans, Directors & Coordinators 
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Brooklyn Lab Charter School - Charter 1 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
Total Revenue 9,186,480 6,966,886 4,126,676 - 2,970,650 

Total Expenses 6,924,030 5,077,795 5,830,521 6,615 3,620,464 
Net Income 2,262,449 1,889,091 (1,703,845) (6,615) (649,814) 

Actual Student Enrollment 558 207 
Total Paid Student Enrollment 558 207 

TOTAL 

23,250,691 
21,745,179 

1,505,512 
765 
765 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 

CFO / Director of Finance 1 - - - - 92,700 
Operation / Business Manager 6 - - - - 363,363 
Administrative Staff 9 - - - - 463,482 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 42 1,517,768 563,043 1,262,762 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Teachers - Regular 34 2,299,572 - - - -
Teachers - SPED 33 - 2,224,404 - - -
Substitute Teachers - - - - - -
Teaching Assistants - - - - - -
Specialty Teachers 8 369,942 137,237 - - -
Aides - - - - - -
Therapists & Counselors 6 - 346,293 - - -
Other 1 44,859 16,641 - - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 82 2,714,373 2,724,574 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Nurse - - - - - -
Librarian - - - - - -
Custodian 2 - - 97,000 - -
Security 3 - - 116,142 - -
Other 3 - - 49,107 - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 7 262,249 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 131 4,232,141 3,287,617 262,249 1,262,762 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 
Payroll Taxes 535,366 415,884 33,175 - 159,739 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 465,535 361,638 28,847 - 138,904 
Retirement / Pension 182,426 141,713 11,304 - 54,431 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 1,183,328 919,234 73,326 353,075 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 5,415,468 4,206,851 335,575 1,615,837 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Accounting / Audit - - - - 178,021 
Legal - - - - 241,578 
Management Company Fee - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch - - - - 540,539 
Payroll Services - - - - 42,690 
Special Ed Services - - - - -
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) 53,246 19,752 - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 720,605 559,781 - - -

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 773,850 579,534 1,002,827 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 
Board Expenses - - - - 1,545 

92,700 
363,363 
463,482 

3,343,573 

2,299,572 
2,224,404 

-
-

507,179 
-

346,293 
61,500 

5,438,947 

-
-

97,000 
116,142 

49,107 
262,249 

9,044,769 

1,144,163 
994,925 
389,874 

2,528,962 

11,573,732 

178,021 
241,578 

-
-

540,539 
42,690 

-
72,998 

1,280,386 
2,356,211 

1,545 
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Brooklyn Lab Charter School - Charter 1 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 54,709 20,295 - - - 75,005 
Special Ed Supplies & Materials - 11,803 - - - 11,803 
Textbooks / Workbooks 101,851 37,784 - - - 139,635 
Supplies & Materials other 66,661 24,729 - - - 91,390 
Equipment / Furniture - - - - 14,832 14,832 
Telephone - - - - 96,267 96,267 
Technology - - - - 31,064 31,064 
Student Testing & Assessment 73,347 27,209 - - - 100,556 
Field Trips 70,716 26,233 - - - 96,949 
Transportation (student) 42,142 15,633 - - - 57,776 
Student Services - other 50,235 18,636 - - - 68,871 
Office Expense - - - - 96,789 96,789 
Staff Development - - - - - 285,753 
Staff Recruitment - - - - 87,646 87,646 
Student Recruitment / Marketing - - - - 200,898 200,898 
School Meals / Lunch - - - - - -
Travel (Staff) 17,377 13,499 - - - 30,876 
Fundraising - - - 6,615 - 6,615 
Other - - - - 118,695 118,695 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 477,039 195,822 6,615 647,736 1,612,965 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
Insurance - - - - 72,178 72,178 
Janitorial - - - - 281,886 281,886 
Building and Land Rent / Lease - - 3,513,187 - - 3,513,187 
Repairs & Maintenance - - 126,667 - - 126,667 
Equipment / Furniture - - - - - -
Security 31,565 11,710 - - - 43,274 
Utilities 226,108 83,879 - - - 309,987 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 257,673 95,588 3,639,854 354,064 4,347,179 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION - - 1,618,410 - - 1,618,410 
INTEREST OF DEFERED LOAN COST - - 18,816 - - 18,816 
INTEREST - - 217,866 - - 217,866 
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 6,924,030 5,077,795 5,830,521 6,615 3,620,464 21,745,179 

NET INCOME 2,262,449 1,889,091 (1,703,845) (6,615) (649,814) 1,505,512 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

TOTAL 
ENROLLED 

Brooklyn Lab Middle School 1 260 87 347 
Brooklyn Lab Middle School 2 120 60 180 
Brooklyn Lab High School 178 60 238 
School District 4 (Enter Name) -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 
July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 
REGULAR 

EDUCATION 
SPECIAL 

EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 

Total Revenue 9,186,480 6,966,886 4,126,676 - 2,970,650 23,250,691 
Total Expenses 6,924,030 5,077,795 5,830,521 6,615 3,620,464 21,745,179 

Net Income 2,262,449 1,889,091 (1,703,845) (6,615) (649,814) 1,505,512 
Actual Student Enrollment 558 207 765 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 558 207 765 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



    
 

  

  

      
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Brooklyn Lab Charter School - Charter 1 

School District 5 (Enter Name) -
TOTAL ENROLLMENT 558 207 765 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 16,463 33,656 30,393 

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 12,409 24,530 28,425 

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 
July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 
REGULAR 

EDUCATION 
SPECIAL 

EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 

Total Revenue 9,186,480 6,966,886 4,126,676 - 2,970,650 23,250,691 
Total Expenses 6,924,030 5,077,795 5,830,521 6,615 3,620,464 21,745,179 

Net Income 2,262,449 1,889,091 (1,703,845) (6,615) (649,814) 1,505,512 
Actual Student Enrollment 558 207 765 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 558 207 765 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



Officer,3.7 FTE Dean of Students, 1 FTE Director of Cirriculum, Learning and
Innovation,1 FTE Director of Residency, 1 FTE Director of Schools, 1 FTE Family
Impact Coordinator, 1 FTE HR Director, 1 FTE Manager of Partnerships, 1 FTE
Manager of Personalized Learning, 1 FTE Senior Director of Student Services

 

        

          
         

           
      

    

    

         

  
             

          
          

           
            

             
          

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

25% Special education population(21% students less than 20%; 24$ students 20%-
60%; 55% students more than 60%) Based on historical averages 

Assumes $2mil in XQ and $950K in CSGF, Walton and other grants 
Assumes 90% of internet and phone costs 
Loan interest from Friends Of 

Refllects textbook and software aid 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

1 Executive Director 
2.4 FTE Associate Deans (of the Lab Corp.), 2.7 FTE Instructional leader, 1 Director 
of School, 1 Director of Lab Corp. and 1 Deputy Deirector 
1.7 FTE Associate Dean, 2 FTE Behavoir Specialist,1 FTE Chief Operations 



     
           

                         
          

   

  
  

                
             
               

      

  

    
    
    

    
 
       

            
   

     
  

         
           

     

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

One Director fo Finance at $92,700 
1 FTE Bursar, 1.7 FTE Operation Manager, 1 FTE Manager Communication and 
Strategic Development, 1 FTE Director of School Operations, 1 FTE Talent Manager1 FTE Data Scientist, 1 FTE Finance Associate, 1 FTE HR Associate, 1 FTE Jr. 
Finance Associate/HR Generalist, 2.7 FTE Operations Associate, 1 FTE Recruiter, 1.7 
FTE Tech Operations Associate 

Assumes $67,634 average 
Assumes $67,406 average 

Assumes 3 FOL teachers , 2 PE Teachers and 1 Health Teacher at $59K, and 1 
computer science teacher at $80K, 1 Director of the residency at $90K and special 
education stipends for $15KAssumes 3 social workers at $63K and 3 high school counselors at $55.5K 
Assume 1 summer experience coordinator at $61.5K 

Provided by NYCDOE 

Assume 2 FTEs at $48.5K 
Assumes 3 FTEs at $38714 
Assumes PT Food Service Workers 

Assumes 12.65% of FTE salaries 
Assumes 11% 
Assumes 5% of salaries with 80% average contribution 

Assumes $25k for audit; $2k for 990 preparation; Assumes $14585 in monthly costs 
Based on historcal averages 

Assumes 75% consumption with CEP designation 
.004% of payroll 

Assumes $95.42 per student for Saturday academy, afterschool porgramming, and 
February Break Academy50 Lab Corp at $23000 plus $130386 in instructional consulting 

All expenses assumes 3% YOY inflation 



Assumes $126.73 year trip per grade
trips

use Chromebook subsidy

informed choice plus SHSAT fees and study materials

interior repair

   
     
    

   
    

    
                       

                
                 
        
         
       
                      

    

             
             

 
                

    
    

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Assumes $98/per student 
Assumes $2360.60 per grade level 
Assumes $182.53 per student 
$129.92 per student 
Assumes $19.39 per student 

Assumes $131.44 per student 
per student for 10 field lessons a year; 8th-10th grade college trips; Assumes one end of 

Assumes $75 per student per year for field lessons and trips; Additional $750 for college 
Assumes $90 per student; Assumes 30% of student use uniform subsidy and 50% of students 
Assumes $126.52 per student including copies and postage 
Assumes $1800 per FTE plus $82062 for RELAY partnership 
Assumes $7303.83 per month for staff recruitment 
Assumes $250 per student for special events budget for picnic, family night, and 8th grade 

Assumes $239 per FTE 

Assumes 25% increaes per year for D/O, property, liability, crime, sexual misconduct, terrorism 
Assumes contracted services for three facilities plus $25K in supplies for each campus 
Actuals 
Assumes $5000 repair for Sands and $60833.50 for Chapel and Jay include painting and 

Alarm and Monitoring systems 
Assumes $3.09 per sq ft. 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 
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DocuSign Envelope ID: FD96F15F-4B50-4DEA-B424-444AFBDB5C7F

None

Tokumbo Shobowale

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

___Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools_____________________________ 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes _X___No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes _X___No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 



 

          
        

        
          

              
           

        
        

       
      

        

 

 
 

________  ________________________________________________________  
  

 
     

    
 

 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

   

          

DocuSign Envelope ID: FD96F15F-4B50-4DEA-B424-444AFBDB5C7F

None

7/28/2018

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

Signature	 Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will b 

Business Telep _________________ 

Business Addre _________________ 

E-mail Address: _________________ 

Home Telephon _________________ 

Home Address: _______________ 
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 45AC776B-2B7D-484B-BA99-B792DC821C2E

Corey Scholes

None

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

___Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools_____________________________ 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes _X___No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes _X___No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 



 

          
        

        
          

              
           

        
        

       
      

        

 

 
 

________  ________________________________________________________  
  

 
     

    
   

 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

   

          

DocuSign Envelope ID: 45AC776B-2B7D-484B-BA99-B792DC821C2E

7/28/18

7/28/2018

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

Signature	 Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telep _____________________ 

Business Addre _____________________ 

E-mail Address: _____________________ 

Home Telephon _____________________ 

Home Address: __________________ 







                                    

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
  

 

  
 

    
 

 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
   

 

 

    
 
 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School 

Education Corporation Trustee 


Trustee Name: 

___Mickey (Martha J.) Revenaugh___________________________ 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is
the Charter School Name): 

___Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools_____________________________ 

1. 	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

Board Chair 

2. 	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes  _X___No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. 	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes _X___No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4. 	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote,
did not participate in

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or
engaging in
transaction and 
relationship to
yourself 

Not applicable                 NONE Not applicable  Not applicable 



               
       

  
 

 
  

  
  

 

    
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

   

                                         
                                        
                                                                                                                                                             

 

5. 	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

________ ___________________________July 24, 2018_________________ 
Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 

Organization
conducting
business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximate
value of the 
business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or
immediate family member 
of household holding an
interest in the organization
conducting business with
the school(s) and the
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken
to Avoid 
Conflict of 
Interest 

iNACOL          Membership          $500     Mickey Revenaugh  Recuse from 
         in nonprofit               is Vice Chair of iNACOL  decision to join
        association            Board of Directors               iNACOL        

applicable 

members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telepho _________ 

Business Addres ________ 

E-mail Address: _ ___________ 

Home Telephone: _ 

Home Address: _ ______ 
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 625E2C33-6295-4F1B-A01C-16F3A19E9CAC

Andy Epstein

None

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

___Brooklyn Laboratory Charter Schools_____________________________ 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes _X___No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes _X___No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 



 

          
        

        
          

              
           

        
        

       
      

        

 

 
 

________  ________________________________________________________  
  

 
     

    
 

 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

   

          

DocuSign Envelope ID: 625E2C33-6295-4F1B-A01C-16F3A19E9CAC

None

7/19/2018

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

Signature	 Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will 

Business Tele _______________ 

Business Addr ______________ 

E-mail Addres ______________ 

Home Telepho _______________ 

Home Address _____________ 
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EFGHIJKLJEFHMNNOPFGJQFRJSPGPFGTMFJMUJVWPXTQN 
YMWZNQGTMF[ 
LMNOPQRSMOpSqPrstrutvrus 

wxNOyQzO{|xNP}|yP~pR|yO{x�P�xy|���pxOPMxSP~pOpxO{|xP�OyMOp�{pN 
�pNzy{�pPO�pPp}}|yONPO�pPz�MyOpyPNz�||�P�MNP�MSpP{xPvru��usPO|�MySP�ppO{x�POMy�pONPO|PMOOyMzOPMxSPypOM{x
pxy|���pxOP|}PNOQSpxONP�{O�PS{NM�{�{O{pN�P�x��{N�P�Mx�QM�pP�pMyxpyN�PMxSPNOQSpxONP��|PMypPpz|x|�{zM���
S{NMS�MxOM�pS�PwxPMSS{O{|x�PSpNzy{�pPO�pPNz�||��NPR�MxNP}|yP�ppO{x�P|yP�M�{x�PRy|�ypNNPO|�MySP�ppO{x� 

{ONPpxy|���pxOPMxSPypOpxO{|xPOMy�pONP{xPvrus�u�� 

\S]]^_̀ aJ_b\]Sbc]S`JdVJeSEfEacVgVPXGTMFJhPQRTFi 

SPXHZTGOPFGjbGGHQXGTMFJEUUMHG[JcMkQHRJlPPGTFiJcQHiPG[ 

�pNzy{�pP~pzyQ{O�pxOP�}}|yONP{xPvru��us 

Lvw�NPz|xN{NOpxOP{xzypMNpP{xPO�pPypzyQ{O�pxO
|}Ppz|x|�{zM���PS{NMS�MxOM�pSPNOQSpxONP{N
SQpPO|PNQzzpNN}Q�P{�R�p�pxOMO{|xP|}PNp�pyM�
NOyMOp�{pN�k�pNpPp}}|yONP{xz�QSpqP
~pMz�{x�P|QOPO|Pz|QxNp�|yN�PN|z{M�P�|y�pyN�
RMypxON�PNRpz{M��pSQzMO{|xPz||yS{xMO|yN�PMxS
|O�pyPMS�{x{NOyMO|yNPMOP�{��PxppSPRQ��{z
Nz�||�N�P
ly�Mx{m{x�P}ypnQpxOP|RpxP�|QNpNPMxS
{x}|y�MO{|xPNpNN{|xN�P{xz�QS{x�P|x�|{x�
zMx�MNN{x�PS||y�O|�S||yPMOP|�pyPorPpp�PY|y�
Z{O�P[|QN{x�PvQO�|y{O�P\pYZ[v�Pz|�R�p]pN�P
Z|xOMzO{x�Pz|QxNp�|yN�PN|z{M�P�|y�pyN�
RMypxON�PMxSP����Pz||yS{xMO|yNPMOPRQ��{z

�z|x|� Nz�||�NP�{O�{xPZ��NPu^�Puo�PMxSPu_�P
{zM��� `M{xOM{x{x�PMxPMzO{�pPyp}pyyM�PRy|�yM�P}y|�
�{NMS�M zQyypxO��Ppxy|��pSP}M�{�{pN�P�{O�PMP}|zQNP|x
xOM�pS ypzyQ{O{x�Ppz|x|�{zM���PS{NMS�MxOM�pS

}M�{�{pN�P
a|y�{x�P�{O�PMPO�{ySPRMyO�P�M{�P�|QNpPO|
NpxSPMRR�{zMO{|xNPO|Pp�{�{��pPNOQSpxONP{xPZ��
u^PMxSPxp{���|y{x�PS{NOy{zONP�{O�P�My�p
z|xzpxOyMO{|xNP|}Ppz|x|�{zM���
S{NMS�MxOM�pSP}M�{�{pN�
b{N{O{x�PMxSPR|NO{x�P}��pyNPMOP�|zM�
p�p�pxOMy�PNz�||�NPO�MOP�M�pPN{�x{}{zMxO
pz|x|�{zPxppS�PMNP�p��PMNPMOPM}Opy�Nz�||�
Ry|�yM�N�P�|QO�PzpxOpyN�PNz�||�Ppxy|���pxO
}M{yN�PNQRpy�My�pON�Pz�Qyz�pN�Pz|��Qx{O� 

�pNzy{�pP~pzyQ{O�pxOP��MxNP{xPvrus�u�� 

wxPvrus�vru��P�pP�{��Pz|xO{xQpPO�pPSpNzy{�pS
p}}|yONPO|P{xzypMNpPpxy|���pxOP|}
pz|x|�{zM���PS{NMS�MxOM�pSPNOQSpxON�Pap
�{��Pz|xO{xQpP|QyP�|y�P�{O�PRMypxOPMS�|zMz�
�y|QRNPMxSP�{��P�|�NOpyPNOQSpxOPypzyQ{O�pxO
O�y|Q��P|QyPRMyOxpyN�{RNP�{O�Pz|��Qx{O�
{xNO{OQO{|xNP�{�pP`lc���Pwy||���xP�Q��{z
L{�yMy��PO�pP[wb�PppO�|y��PMxSP�|zM�Pyp�{�{|QN
|y�Mx{mMO{|xN�PLvwP�{��Pz|xO{xQpPO|PRQ��{z{mp
O�pPNz�||�PO|PRy|NRpzO{�pP}M�{�{pNP|}PO�p
�{��pNOPxppS�PapP�{��PQNpPp]OpxN{�p
�Q�O{�{x�QM�PMS�pyO{N{x�PMxSPMPyMx�pP|}
�pS{M�P{xz�QS{x�Pp�M{�P��MNON�P|x�{xpPxp�N
N{OpN�PN|z{M�P�pS{M�PRMRpyP}��pyNPMxS
�y|z�QypN�PO�pPNz�||��NP�p�N{Op�PMxSPS{ypzO
�M{�PO|PN�MypP{x}|y�MO{|xPM�|QOPLvw�P 

LvwPyp�M{xNPz|��{OOpSPO|PpxNQy{x�PO�MO
Lvw�NPRy|�yM�NPMxSP}Mz{�{O{pNPMypPMzzpNN{��p
O|PM��P�p��pyNP|}PO�pPRQ��{z�Pa�pxPypzyQ{O{x�
|yPMS�{OO{x�PNOQSpxON�P�pP�{��Px|O
S{Nzy{�{xMOpP|xPO�pP�MN{NP|}PyMzp�Pz|�|y�
xMO{|xM�P|y{�{x�PzyppS�PNp]�PpO�x{z{O��PNp]QM�
|y{pxOMO{|x�P�pxOM�P|yPR��N{zM�PS{NM�{�{O��
M�p�PMxzpNOy��PMO��pO{zPRpy}|y�Mxzp�PNRpz{M�
xppS�P�x��{N�P�Mx�QM�pPRy|}{z{pxz��P|yPRy{|y
MzMSp�{zPMz�{p�p�pxO� 
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k|PypzyQ{OP�LLN�PLvwPS{NOy{�QOpSPMRR�{zMO{|x
{x}|y�MO{|xPMxSP�MOpy{M�NP{xPMP�My{pO�P|}
}|y�NPO|PypMz�PO�pP�y|MSpNOPNz|RpP|}
}M�{�{pN�P{xz�QS{x�Px|x��x��{N�PNRpM�pyNPMxS
O�|NpP�{O�P�{�{OpSP{xOpyxpOPMzzpNN�PLvwPQNpN
MP�My{pO�P|}P�pO�|SN�P{xz�QS{x�q
vNN{�x{x�Pp]OyMPNOM}}PO{�pPO|PypzyQ{OP�LL
NOQSpxONdP
~pnQpNO{x�PMxPMSeQNO�pxOPO|PLvw�NP�|OOpy�
�p{��O{x�PO|PRyp}pypxzpP�LLNPO�{NP}M��dP
Z|xSQzO{x�P|QOypMz�PO|P�LLPz|��Qx{O{pN�
z||yS{xMO|yNPMxSPMS�|zMOpN�PO�pyMR{NON�
{��{�yMxOPzpxOpyN�PMxSP|O�pyPN|z{M�PNpy�{zp
Ry|�{SpyN�P{xz�QS{x�PMOP�|zM�P�|QNpNP|}
�|yN�{RP}|yPx|xt�{�{OpSP�x��{N�PNRpM�{x�
}M�{�{pNPMxSPz|��Qx{O�PM�pxz{pNPNQz�PMN
ZMO�|�{zP�{�yMO{|xPNpy�{zpNd�x��{N�
~pMz�{x�P|QOPO|P}M�{�{pNP|}P�LLNPzQyypxO��P|xLMx�QM 
z�MyOpyP�M{O�{NONd�p
[|NO{x�P}M{yNPMxSP{x}|y�MO{|xPNpNN{|xNPMOLpMyxpy
RQ��{zPMxSPRy{�MOpP�pxQpNP}ypnQpxOpSP��N 
}M�{�{pNdP
�y|�{S{x�POyMxN�MO{|xPNpy�{zpNP}|yPM��
Ry|�|O{|xM�P�MOpy{M�NPMxSP{x�RpyN|x
{xOpyMzO{|xd
vS�pyO{N{x�P|QyP�|OOpy�P{xPx|x��x��{N�P�|zM�
xp�NRMRpyN�PyMS{|�PMxSPOp�p�{N{|xPNOMO{|xNd
�{NOy{�QO{x�P�M{�{x�NPMxSP�{�{x�QM�
{x}|y�MO{|xPO|PS{NOy{zOPypN{SpxON�P{xz�QS{x�
ypN{SpxONP{xP�|��{xz|�pPMxSP�{]pS�{xz|�p
z|��Qx{O{pNdP
�y|RR{x�P�{�{x�QM�P}��pyNPMxSPR|NOpyNP{x
RQ��{zP�|QN{x�Pz|�R�p]pN�P�|zM�P�QN{xpNNpN�
NQRpy�My�pON�PMxSPz|��Qx{O�PzpxOpyNdPMxS
vN�{x�Pwy||���xPR|�{O{z{MxNP}|yPNQRR|yO
ypMz�{x�P|QOPO|P�{�{OpS��x��{N�PNRpM�{x�
}M�{�{pN� 

lQOypMz�PMxSPypzyQ{O�pxOPp}}|yONPOMy�pO{x�
NOQSpxONP�{O�PS{NM�{�{O{pNP{xz�QSpqP
~pMz�{x�P|QOPO|Pz|QxNp�|yN�PN|z{M�P�|y�pyN�
RMypxON�PNRpz{M��pSQzMO{|xPz||yS{xMO|yN�PMxS
|O�pyPMS�{x{NOyMO|yNPMOP�{��PxppSPRQ��{z
Nz�||�N�P
ly�Mx{m{x�P}ypnQpxOP|RpxP�|QNpNPMxS
{x}|y�MO{|xPNpNN{|xN�P{xz�QS{x�P|x�|{x�
zMx�MNN{x�PS||y�O|�S||yPMOP|�pyPorPpp�PY|y�
Z{O�P[|QN{x�PvQO�|y{O�P\pYZ[v�Pz|�R�p]pN�P
Z|xOMzO{x�Pz|QxNp�|yN�PN|z{M�P�|y�pyN�
RMypxON�PMxSP����Pz||yS{xMO|yNPMOPRQ��{z 

k|PypzyQ{OP�LLN�PLvwPR�MxNPO|Pz|xO{xQpPO�p
|QOypMz�PNOyMOp�{pNPSpNzy{�pSP{xPO�pPvru��us
ypzyQ{O�pxOPp}}|yON�Ppp�P�p�PNOyMOp�{pN
{xz�QSpP|QOypMz�PO|PMxSP�ppO{x�NP�{O�
z|��Qx{O�P�pMSpyN�PRQ��{z�{x}|y�MO{|x
NpNN{|xNP\{xz�QS{x�POyMxN�MO{|xN��PMxSP}QyO�py
|QOypMz�PO|PNz�|�MyNP|xPz�MyOpyP�M{O�{NON� 

pp�P�p�PNOyMOp�{pNP{xz�QSpP|QOypMz�PO|PMxS
�ppO{x�NP�{O�PR|�{O{zM�PMxSPz|��Qx{O�
�pMSpyN�PRQ��{z�{x}|y�MO{|xPNpNN{|xN�PMxS 
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Nz�||�NP�{O�{xPZ��NPu^�Puo�PMxSPu_�P
NP�{O�
�OQSpxO

`M{xOM{x{x�PMxPMzO{�pPyp}pyyM�PRy|�yM�P}y|�
�{NM�{�{O zQyypxO��Ppxy|��pSP}M�{�{pN�P�{O�PMP}|zQNP|x
{pN ypzyQ{O{x�Ppz|x|�{zM���PS{NMS�MxOM�pS

}M�{�{pN�P
a|y�{x�P�{O�PMPO�{ySPRMyO�P�M{�P�|QNpPO|
NpxSPMRR�{zMO{|xNPO|Pp�{�{��pPNOQSpxONP{xPZ��
u^PMxSPxp{���|y{x�PS{NOy{zONP�{O�P�My�p
z|xzpxOyMO{|xNP|}Ppz|x|�{zM���
S{NMS�MxOM�pSP}M�{�{pN�
b{N{O{x�PMxSPR|NO{x�P}��pyNPMOP�|zM�
p�p�pxOMy�PNz�||�NPO�MOP�M�pPN{�x{}{zMxO
pz|x|�{zPxppS�PMNP�p��PMNPMOPM}Opy�Nz�||�
Ry|�yM�N�P�|QO�PzpxOpyN�PNz�||�Ppxy|���pxO
}M{yN�PNQRpy�My�pON�Pz�Qyz�pN�Pz|��Qx{O�
zpxOpyN�P�pM�O�PzpxOpyN�PMxSPNz�||�P�Q{SMxzp
z|QxNp�|yN�P|}}{zpN�P 

}QyO�pyP|QOypMz�PO|PNz�|�MyNP|xPz�MyOpy
�M{O�{NON�PwxPMSS{O{|x�POMy�pOpSPMS�pyO{N{x�
|x�{xpP\p���PfMzp�||�PMSNP{xPRMypxOPMxS
z|��Qx{O�P�y|QRN�PMxSP}pMOQypSPMyO{z�pNP{x
����PypN|QyzpNPMxSPxMO{|xM�P}|yQ�NP�{�p
cxSpyNO||S�|y�P�{��P{xzypMNpPO�pPS{M�|�Qp
M�|QOPLvw�NP�{NN{|xPMxSPSy{�pPMSS{O{|xM�
ypzyQ{O�pxOP|}PNOQSpxONP�{O�PS{NM�{�{O{pN� 

SPGPFGTMFJEUUMHG[JcMkQHRJlPPGTFiJcQHiPG[ 

�pNzy{�pP~pOpxO{|xP�}}|yONP{xPvru��us �pNzy{�pP~pOpxO{|xP��MxNP{xPvrus�u�� 

LvwP{NP}|zQNpSP|xPz|xO{xQ{x�PO|PRy|�{SpPM
NQzzpNN}Q�PMzMSp�{zP|RO{|xP}|yP|Qy
pz|x|�{zM���PS{NMS�MxOM�pSPNOQSpxON�Pfy|�
|QyPNOM}}{x�P�|Sp�PO|P|QyPz�MNNy||�Py|QO{xpN
O|P|QyPz|xN{NOpxO��P�{��Pp]RpzOMO{|xN�PLvw
�|y�NPO|PpxNQypPO�MOPM��PNOQSpxONPNQzzppS�
yp�MyS�pNNP|}PMzMSp�{zP�p�p��PNRpz{M�PxppSN�
|yP�Mx�QM�pPRy|}{z{pxz��PLvw�NPMzMSp�{zPR�Mx
�M�pNPMPN{�x{}{zMxOP{x�pNO�pxOP{xP�{���
S|NM�pPOQO|y{x��P��{z�P{NPp}}pzO{�pP}|yP�|��
{xz|�pPNOQSpxON�Pgp�PypOpxO{|xPMzO{�{O{pN
{xz�QSpq
lRR|yOQx{O{pNP}|yPNOQSpxONPO|Pp]zp�P{xPO�p
z�MNNy||�PMxSP�pPz|��p�p�ypMS�qPapP|}}py
NOQSpxONPMzO{�{O{pNPO�MOPM��|�PQx{nQpPMzzpNN
O|P�pMyx{x�PMxSPMzzp�pyMO{|x�P{xz�QS{x�Pv�
z�MNNpN�PSQM�PzypS{OPz|��p�pPz�MNNpN�Pz|��p�p
�{N{ON�PMxSPMPSpS{zMOpSPOpM�P}|zQNpSP|x�z|x|� z|��p�pPz|QxNp�{x�PMxSPypMS{xpNN�{zM��� lRR|yOQx{O{pNP}|yPNOQSpxONPO|P�pPNQzzpNN}Q��{NMS�M |QON{SpP|}PO�pPz�MNNy||�qP�OQSpxONP{xPuuO�xOM�pS MxSPuvO�P�yMSpNPMypPp]RpzOpSPO|PRMyO{z{RMOp
{xPp]Rpy{pxO{M�P{xOpyxN�{RNPMOP�|zM�Pz|�RMx{pN
MxSP|y�Mx{mMO{|xN�Pwp{x�PRMyOP|}PMPNQzzpNN}Q�
OpM�P�p�RNP�Mx�PNOQSpxONPpNOM��{N�PNQRR|yO
xpO�|y�NPMxSPRppyP�y|QRN�Pk�{NPzMxP�|O{�MOp
NOQSpxONPO|PRMyO{z{RMOpP{xPRy|�yM�NPMxSPOM�p
Ry{SpP{xPO�p{yPMz�{p�p�pxO�
kyMz�{x�PMzMSp�{zPMxSPz�MyMzOpy
Sp�p�|R�pxOPRy|�ypNNqPLvwPOyMz�NPpMz�
NOQSpxO�NPMzMSp�{zPMxSPz�MyMzOpy 

LvwPpxy|��NPMxSPypOM{xNPNz�|�MyNP��|PMyp
pz|x|�{zM���PS{NMS�MxOM�pSPMOP}MyP�{��py
yMOpNPO�MxPO�pPNpxS{x�PS{NOy{zO�Pk�p
RpyzpxOM�pP|}PNOQSpxONP��|PMypPpz|x|�{zM���
S{NMS�MxOM�pSPM�N|Px|�P|QORMzpNPO�pPS{NOy{zO
��Pu()�Pz|�RMypSPO|PeQNOPv)P}|QyP�pMyNPM�|�
Lvw�NPNOy|x�P{xzypMNpP{xPO�pPypzyQ{O�pxOP|}
pz|x|�{zM���PS{NMS�MxOM�pSPNOQSpxONP{NPSQp
O|PNQzzpNN}Q�P{�R�p�pxOMO{|xP|}PNp�pyM�
NOyMOp�{pN�Pk�pNpPp}}|yONP{xz�QSpqP
~pMz�{x�P|QOPO|Pz|QxNp�|yN�PN|z{M�P�|y�pyN�
RMypxON�PNRpz{M��pSQzMO{|xPz||yS{xMO|yN�PMxS
|O�pyPMS�{x{NOyMO|yNPMOP�{��PxppSPRQ��{z
Nz�||�N�P
ly�Mx{m{x�P}ypnQpxOP|RpxP�|QNpNPMxS
{x}|y�MO{|xPNpNN{|xN�P{xz�QS{x�P|x�|{x�
zMx�MNN{x�PS||y�O|�S||yPMOP|�pyPorPpp�PY|y�
Z{O�P[|QN{x�PvQO�|y{O�P\pYZ[v�Pz|�R�p]pN�P
Z|xOMzO{x�Pz|QxNp�|yN�PN|z{M�P�|y�pyN�
RMypxON�PMxSP����Pz||yS{xMO|yNPMOPRQ��{z
Nz�||�NP�{O�{xPZ��NPu^�Puo�PMxSPu_�P
`M{xOM{x{x�PMxPMzO{�pPyp}pyyM�PRy|�yM�P}y|�
zQyypxO��Ppxy|��pSP}M�{�{pN�P�{O�PMP}|zQNP|x
ypzyQ{O{x�Ppz|x|�{zM���PS{NMS�MxOM�pS
}M�{�{pN�P
a|y�{x�P�{O�PMPO�{ySPRMyO�P�M{�P�|QNpPO|PNpxS
MRR�{zMO{|xNPO|Pp�{�{��pPNOQSpxONP{xPZ��Pu^
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Sp�p�|R�pxO�PwxOpy{�PMNNpNN�pxONPM�N|P�p�R
O|P{SpxO{}�P��{z�PNOQSpxONPMypPNOyQ���{x�PMxS
�|�PO�p�PzMxP�pP�pOOpyPNQRR|yOpS�P
LvwPM�N|PNQy�p�NPNOQSpxONP��|PS|Px|OPyp�
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Entry	11	Classroom	Teacher	and	Administrator
Attrition
Last	updated:	08/01/2018

Report	changes	in	teacher	and	administrator	staffing.

Instructions	for	completing	the	Classroom	Teacher	and	Administrator	Attrition	Tables
Charter	schools	must	complete	the	tables	titled	2017-2018	Classroom	Teacher	and
Administrator	Attrition	to	report	changes	in	teacher	and	administrator	staffing
during	the	2017-2018	school	year.	Please	provide	the	full	time	equivalent	(FTE)	of
staff	on	June	30,	2017;	the	FTE	for	any	departed	staff	from	July	1,	2017	through	June
30,	2018;	the	FTE	for	added	staff	from	July	1,	2017	through	June	30,	2018;	and	the
FTE	of	staff	added	in	newly	created	positions	from	July	1,	2017	through	June	30,	2018
using	the	tables	provided.

1.	Classroom	Teacher	Attrition	Table

FTE	Classroom
Teachers	on
6/30/17

FTE	Classroom
Teachers
Departed	7/1/17
–	6/30/18

FTE	Classroom
Teachers	Filling
Vacant	Positions
7/1/17	–	6/30/18

FTE	Classroom
Teachers	Added
in	New	Positions
7/1/17	-	6/30/18

FTE	of
Classroom
Teachers	on
6/3018

36 12 8 40 76

2.	Administrator	Position	Attrition	Table

FTE
Administrative
Positions	on
6/30/17

FTE
Administrators
Departed	7/1/17
–	6/30/18

FTE
Administrators
Filling	Vacant
Positions	7/1/17
–	6/30/18

FTE
Administrators
Added	in	New
Positions	7/1/17
-	6/30/18

FTE
Administrative
Positions	on
6/30/18

4 2 2 2 5
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3.	Tell	your	school's	story

Charter	schools	may	provide	additional	information	in	this	section	of	the	Annual
Report	about	their	respective	teacher	and	administrator	attrition	rates	as	some
teacher	or	administrator	departures	do	not	reflect	advancement	or	movement	within
the	charter	school	networks.	Schools	may	provide	additional	detail	to	reflect	a
teacher’s	advancement	up	the	ladder	to	a	leadership	position	within	the	network	or
an	administrator’s	movement	to	lead	a	new	network	charter	school.
	

LAB’s	talent	pipeline—the	LAB	Fellowship	and	the	Teacher	Residency—fosters	retention.	The	two-year
Residency	combines	co-teaching	and	graduate	school	to	become	SPED	certified.	LAB’s	retention	is
strong.	LAB	develops	and	advances	current	employees	to	cultivate	education	leaders	whilst	we	reduce
turnover,	boost	retention,	and	increase	diversity—to	produce	breakthrough	results.	We	make	significant
investments	in	our	people	because	talent	development	is	a	core	value.	We	believe	everyone	deserves
systematic	investment	and	development;	internal	talent	pipelines	are	our	best	source	of	future	skill.
LAB’s	innovative	salary	structure	and	comprehensive	PD	program	provide	incentives	for	staff	to	stay	with
us	over	time.

4.	Charter	schools	must	ensure	that	all	prospective	employees	receive	clearance
through	the	NYSED	Office	of	School	Personnel	Review	and	Accountability	(OSPRA)
prior	to	employment.	After	an	employee	has	been	cleared,	schools	are	required	to
maintain	proof	of	such	clearance	in	the	file	of	each	employee.	For	the	safety	of	all
students,	charter	schools	must	take	immediate	steps	to	terminate	the	employment	of
individuals	who	have	been	denied	clearance.	Once	the	employees	have	been
terminated,	the	school	must	terminate	the	request	for	clearance	in	the	TEACH
system.		
	
Have	all	employees	have	been	cleared	through	the	NYSED	TEACH	system?
	

Yes

5.	For	perspective	or	current	employees	whose	clearance	has	been	denied,	have	you
terminated	their	employment	and	removed	them	from	the	TEACH	system?

Yes

Thank	you

http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/
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Entry	12	Uncertified	Teachers
Created:	08/01/2018	•	Last	updated:	08/02/2018

FTE	Count	of	All	Teachers
(Certified	and	Uncertified)	as	of
6/30/18

61

FTE	Count	of	All	Certified
Teachers	as	of	6/30/18

46

Instructions	for	Reporting	Percent	of	Uncertified	Teachers
The	table	below	is	reflective	of	the	information	collected	through	the	online	portal	for
compliance	with	New	York	State	Education	Law	2854(3)(a-1)	for	teaching	staff
qualifications.	Enter	the	relevant	full	time	equivalent	(FTE)	count	of	teachers	in	each
column.	For	example,	a	school	with	20	full	time	teachers	and	5	half	time	teachers
would	have	an	FTE	count	of	22.5.	If	more	than	one	column	applies	to	a	particular
teacher,	please	select	one	column	for	the	FTE	count.	Please	do	not	include
paraprofessionals,	such	as	teacher	assistants.

FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	on	6/30/18,	and	each	uncertified	teacher	should	be
counted	only	once.

FTE	Count

1.	Total	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	(6-30-18) 15

2.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	at	least	three	years
of	elementary,	middle	or	secondary	classroom	teaching
experience	(6-30-18)

9

3.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	are	tenured	or
tenure	track	college	faculty	(6-30-18) 0

4.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	two	years	of	Teach
for	America	experience	(6-30-18) 2

5.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	exceptional
business,	professional,	artistic,	athletic,	or	military
experience	(6-30-18)

3

6.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	do	not	fit	into	any
of	the	prior	four	categories	(6-30-18) 1

Thank	you.
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE SUMMARY

This organizational chart is comprised of slides that the organizational structure at LAB, team 
make-ups at the campus and shared services levels, and core responsibilities of staff across LAB.  

LAB has campus-level teams at each school, and a shared services team that provides infrastructure 
and management support to all LAB schools.  

Shared services teams Campus-level teams

● Executive Director and reports 
● Schools Team
● Curriculum, Learning & Innovation Team
● Talent Team
● Operations Team
● Finance Team 
● Family Engagement & Partnerships Team 
● Communications and Strategic Development

● Chapel Middle
● Sands Middle
● High School (Sands)



SHARED SERVICES TEAM



EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND REPORTS

Executive Director

Manager, Comms & 
Strategic Dev / 

Planning

 Director of 
Schools COODirector, Scholar 

Services

Director, 
Curriculum, 
Learning & 
Innovation

Manager, Talent Director, School 
Operations 



SCHOOLS TEAM

Director of Schools

School Director, 
Chapel MS

School Director,
Sands MS School Director, HSTNTP



CURRICULUM, LEARNING & INNOVATION

Director, Curriculum, 
Learning & Innovation

Curriculum 
Specialist
Advanced 
Placement

Curriculum 
Specialist

Humanities

Curriculum 
Specialist

STEM

Curriculum 
Specialist

ELA
Data Scientist

Curriculum 
Specialist

Math

Manager of 
Academic 
Operations



TALENT

Manager, Talent 

Recruiter AssociateTalent Associate Dean of the 
Residency



OPERATIONS

COO

Bursar (Enrollment) IT / Technology

HR Associate 

HR Generalist Facilities Manager

Handyman Tech OpsTech Ops

Finance
Family 

Engagement & 
Partnerships



FINANCE  

Director, Finance 

Finance Associate
Charter School 

Business 
Management



FAMILY & COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS

Director, Network 
Partnerships

Manager, 
Family & Community 

Partnerships

Associate, Family & 
Community 

Partnerships

Family Impact 
Coordinator



COMMUNICATIONS, EXTERNAL AFFAIRS, AND 
STRATEGIC PLANNING

Manager, Communications 
& Strategic Dev / Planning



SCHOOL OPERATIONS TEAM

Director, School 
Operations

Operations Managers

Operations 
Associates



CAMPUS-LEVEL TEAMS



CHAPEL MS 

School DIrector
Chapel

Dean of Instruction, 
6th Grade

Dean of the LAB 
Corps

Grade Level 
Team

6th Grade

Deputy School 
Director,

8th Grade
Dean of Scholars

Fellows

Associate Dean of the 
LAB Corps

Grade Level 
Team

8th Grade

Dean of Instruction, 
7th Grade

Grade Level 
Team

7th Grade

Fellows



SANDS MS

School Director
Sands MS

Dean of the LAB 
Corps Dean of Instruction

Associate Dean of the 
LAB Corps

Dean of Scholars Dean of Instruction

Fellows

Grade Level Team
8th Grade

Grade Level Team
7th Grade

Grade Level Team
6th Grade



HS (SANDS)

School Director
High School

Counseling / Social 
Work Dean of Scholars

Grade Level Team
9th Grade

Dean of Instruction 

Grade Level Team
10th Grade

Summer Experience 
Coordinator
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Preparation Academy Exams & Testing 
First & Last Days of School Early Dismissal (1:15 PM)
8th Grade Stepping Up Ceremony No School
End of Trimester Afterschool

KEY 

April 2019 May 2019 June 2019

2-4: NY State ELA Exams (Grades 6-8) 3:45 

dismissal

5: Teacher in-Service Day (no school)

19: Good Friday (no school)

1-3: NY State Math Exams (Grades 6-8) 3:45 

dismissal

13-17: Spring Break (no school)

27: Memorial Day (no school)

3: Regents Exam

12: Family Conferences (1:15 dismissal)                           

21: Last Day of Afterschool

24: End of Spring Trimester

25: Last Day of School (1:15 dismissal)

26: 8th Grade Stepping Up Ceremony

January 2019 February 2019 March 2019

1: New Year's Day (no school)

18: Teacher in-Service Day (no school)

21: MLK Day (no school)

18: Presidents' Day (no school)

19-22: February Break (no school)
1: End of Winter Trimester

13-14: Family Conferences (half days)

October 2018 November 2018 December 2018

8: Indigenous Peoples' Day (no school)

31: Teacher in-Service Day (no school)

12: Veterans Day (no school)

19-23: Thanksgiving Break (no school)

30: End of Autumn Trimester

12-13: Family Conferences (half days)

24-31: Winter Break (no school)

2018-2019 Student Calendar

July 2018 August 2018 September 2018

27-30: Preparation Academy (1:15 dismissal new 

scholars only)
4: Independence Day 3: Labor Day 

6: First Day of School (3:45 Dismissal)                

11: First Day of Afterschool
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